
Date Published:26 November 2021     

Appointments Committee

Monday 6 December 2021 at 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR Sophie 
Benfield

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To note any apologies.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2021.

Chair

4  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To answer any written public questions about matters which are within the 
powers and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 29 November 2021.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be possible to 
provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case a written 
answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible after the meeting.

Sophie 
Benfield

5  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 29 November 2021.

Sophie 
Benfield

6  LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE (Pages 5 - 6) Peter Bungard

Membership –  Cllr Rebecca Halifax, Cllr Tim Harman, Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, 
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson, Cllr David Norman MBE, Cllr Lynden Stowe and Cllr Wendy Thomas 



    

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Appointments Committee held on Friday 5 March 2021 
virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Richard Boyles
Cllr Tim Harman
Cllr Paul Hodgkinson

Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Lesley Williams MBE

Officers in attendance: Nick Lerry, Mandy Quayle and Suzanne Salter.

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Cllr Richard Boyles was appointed as Chair for the remainder of the Council term.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Mark Hawthorne and Nigel Moor.

Cllrs Tim Harman and Patrick Molyneux were present as substitutes.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 September 2020 were approved as 
a correct record.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received.

5. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

No members questions were received.

6. PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21 

6.1 Nick Lerry, Employer Relations Manager, gave a brief overview of the Pay 
Policy Statement annual review, the Committee noted the following changes:

 An updated list of posts in which the post-holder earns £100k or more 
(FTE).

 Expanded definition of ‘Market Rate Supplement’ to include a response to 
recruitment difficulties that arise from the ‘scarcity’ of suitable candidates 
in the labour market (e.g. the recent recruitment to the Head of Pension 
Fund), as well as to those posts for which, while there may not be a 
labour market supply shortage, recruitment difficulties nonetheless arise 
because the Council pay below the ‘going rate’ in the market. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

 Inclusion of a new section on Travel and Vehicle Provision, which 
covered the recently introduced car leasing scheme (for low-emission 
vehicles), the provision of a suitable emergency-response vehicle for 
GFRS officers at Station Manager Grade and above, and reference to the 
provision of fuel for GFRS Principal Officers (CFO, DCFO and ACFO) in 
connection with their ‘continuous standby duty’ commitment.

 Reference to the introduction and subsequent withdrawal of legislation 
restricting public sector exit payments, and the Government’s renewed 
statement of intent to ‘work at pace’ to introduce alternative measures to 
restrict excessive severance payments to public sector employees.

 Some incidental (non-substantive) changes to wording and format to 
improve clarity.

6.2 Members questioned whether the inclusion of a provision covering GFRS 
fuel claims would offer greater protection to the Council from fraudulent 
claims. It was advised that this provision had been consulted on with 
professionals in this field, was fully compliant with the very specific HMRC 
guidance around the use of emergency response vehicles, and required the 
recording of all mileage and sign off by a manager. The Committee were 
assured that, in addition to other improvements in policy, this provision would 
help to minimise the risk of fraud.

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revised Pay Policy 
Statement 2021-22 be adopted.

7. LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME - DISCRETIONS POLICY 

7.1 Nick Lerry, Employee Relations Manager, presented this item and members 
noted the following points.

7.2 Regulation 60 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 and paragraph 2(2) of the 
LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 
say that a Scheme employer must prepare and publish a written statement of 
its policy in relation to the exercise of its functions under these regulations. 
There are similar requirements in respect of the LGPS 2008 and 1997 
regulations regarding benefits accrued under the legacy ‘final salary’ 
schemes.

7.3 The Committee approved the Council’s Discretions Policy Statement at its 
meeting in July 2014, since then, however, there had been various decisions 
from the Pensions Ombudsman and courts relating to the exercise by 
employers of discretions available to them under the various public sector 
schemes. 

7.4 These decisions and challenges had now led to the LGA advising local 
authority employers to review their Policy and make appropriate amendments 
if they considered it could be vulnerable to similar challenge.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

7.5 On reviewing its Statement, the Council noted some potential vulnerability and 
the attached report therefore outlined proposed amendments for the 
Committee to consider.

7.6 An example was given of a potential challenge being if the Council had made 
a mistake, which resulted in a negative impact on an employee, and the 
current restrictive wording of the Policy preventing GCC from rectifying that 
impact.

7.7 It was confirmed, following a question, that there had been no examples of 
challenge happening in Gloucestershire, the amendments were simply 
responding to other examples nationally.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 10:35.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE REPORT 

Appointments 
Committee Date

6 December 2021

Officer Peter Bungard, Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service

Purpose of Report To redesignate the position of Executive Director of Corporate Resources to 
Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of Corporate Resources 

Recommendations The committee notes that: 

 the meeting of Appointments Committee on 3 Feb 2019 agreed to 
the deletion of the Director of Strategic Finance and the re-
establishment of the position of Deputy Chief Executive, which would 
incorporate the statutory s151 Officer role, with a reserve position of 
appointing to Strategic Finance Director

 the external recruitment process concluded with Appointment 
Subcommittee utilising the reserve position and appointing a 
Strategic Finance Director.  This position has since been 
redesignated Executive Director of Corporate Resources in line with 
other senior Director posts.

The committee agrees to:

 redesignate the position of Executive Director of Corporate 
Resources to the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of 
Corporate Resources in line with the intent of the previous decision.

Resource 
Implications

The grade of the position will remain RB9 and therefore there are no financial 
implications.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



2

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

1. Background

In February 2019 following the departure of the then Director of Strategic Finance, there 
was a review of the senior structure and the recruitment market at that time.

As a result, Appointments Committee considered a paper that proposed the re-
establishment of the Deputy Chief Executive.  The role would support the Chief 
Executive in setting the long-term strategic vision and associated plans for the council, 
deputise for the Chief Executive and work closely with other members of CLT, 
colleagues across the council and partner organisations. It was proposed that the 
person appointed would provide leadership in line with our values, continue the work to 
develop a culture of accountability and customer focus, and help us to develop a vibrant 
Gloucestershire. The post would include the statutory s151 Officer role and have 
responsibility for most of our support services.

However, the paper also considered the significant challenges in the recruitment market 
regarding attracting highly qualified and experienced senior candidates.  As a result, the 
Appointments Committee agreed to the re-establishment of the Deputy Chief Executive 
role but with a reserve position of Strategic Director should this be more appropriate for 
the available candidates.

In practice when the Deputy Chief Executive role was advertised, Steve Mawson was 
appointed as Strategic Director.  His position has since been re-designated as 
Executive Director of Corporate Resources.

2. Current position

The reasons to establish the Deputy Chief Executive position remain.  There is a critical 
role in deputising for the Chief Executive and proactively supporting him to work 
strategically across our council and wider system.  Since his appointment, Steve has 
demonstrated his value and ability to deliver the role as intended.

Furthermore, there has been a significant amount of turnover in corporate leadership in 
recent years.  Several long serving individuals have left to take up promotion 
opportunities in other councils or have come to retirement age.  Therefore, there is 
organisational benefit to supporting internal progression to enable the retention of 
organisation learning and stability.

Therefore, it is proposed to revert to the previous decision and redesignate the role in 
line with the recommendations.  The position will remain graded at RB9 in line with 
other Executive Directors.

Page 6


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Leadership Structure

